
REGULAR COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA







SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16

# 1:
CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT

ATTENDING

ABSENT 

#2: 
AGENDA
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Special Council Meeting Minutes June 8, 2022
M.D. of Greenview No. 16
Page 2 

#3
DELEGATION

3.1 ALBERTA ENERGY REGULATORS 

AER PRESENTATION

#4
ADJOURNMENT

4.0 ADJOURNMENT

__________________________________                                      ______________________________
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REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16

#1
CALL TO ORDER
PRESENT

ATTENDING

ABSENT

#2
AGENDA
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 
#3 MINUTES 

3.2 BUSINESS 
ARISING 
FROM THE MINUTES  
 

3.2 BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 

#4 PUBLIC HEARING 4.0 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 CLOSED SESSION 
#6  
BYLAWS 

6.0 BYLAWS 

 6.1 Bylaw No. 22-908 Re-designate from Agricultural One (A-1) to Country 
Residential One (CR-1) District 
  

Bylaw No. 22-908 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 6.2 Bylaw No. 22-912 Re-designate from Rural Settlement (RS) District to 
Institutional (INS)

Bylaw No.22-912  

 
 7.1 Gravel Haul Actuals & Tender Results  
Gravel Haul Actuals 
& Tender Results   

. 

 7.2 Tonne/Km and Hourly Gravel Hauling  
Tonne/Km and 
Hourly Gravel 
Hauling  

. 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.3 2022 Crack Sealing, Spray Patch and Line Painting  
Crack Sealing, Spray 
Patch & Line painting 
 

 

 5.0 DELEGATIONS
DELEGATION 5.1 Alberta Transportation 
AB 
TRANSPORTATION 

. 

 7.4 BF 76902 Culvert Replacement and Other Work
BF 76902 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.7 2022 Bridge Maintenance Contract Award  
2022 BRIDGE 
MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT AWARD  

 7.8 Grande Cache Pathway Award 
GRANDE CACHE 
PATHWAY AWARD  

 7.9 Shoulder Pull Map for Information  
SHOULDER PULL MAP  

 7.10 Road Closure Application for Registered Road Plan 8921846 
ROAD CLOSURE APP 
REGISTERED ROAD 
PLAN 8921846 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.11 Replenish Nutrients – Letter of Support  
REPLENISH 
NUTRIENTS  

. 

 7.12 Township Road 701A Overlay Award  
TWP RD 701A 
OVERLAY  

 7.13 Valleyview Airport  
VALLEYVIEW 
AIRPORT  
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.14 Township Road 714, 720 and 722 
TWP 714,720,722 

 

CAPITAL PROJECT 
RD22005 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.15 Agricultural Plastics Recycling Program 
AGRICULTURAL 
PLASTICS RECYCLING 
PROGRAM  

. 

 7.16 Tax Recovery – Public Sale of Land 
TAX RECOVERY- 
PUBLILC SALE   

 

Roll # Legal Description Reserve Bid  
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.17 Request to Waive the Municipal, Education and Seniors portions of the 
Improvement Taxes on Roll 309695 

WAIVE PORTION OF 
TAXES FOR ROLL 
309695 

 7.18 Long Run Exploration Ltd. Property Tax Payment Proposal 
LONG RUN 
EXPLORATION LTD. 
PROPERTY TAX 
PAYMENT PROPOSAL  .

 7.19 Policy 1042 Access to Information  
POLICY 1042 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 

 7.20 Fox Creek Greenview Joint Economic Development Board 
Appointments  

FOX CREEEK 
GREENVIEW JOINT 
EC. DEV. BOARD 
APPOINTMENTS 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.21 Town of Fox Creek Fire Service Agreement 
TOWN OF FOX CREEK 
FIRE SERVICE 
AGREEMENT 

  

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

LOC BIG MOUNTAIN 
GROUP CAMPING & 
REC AREA  

7.22 LOC Information Regarding the Big Mountain Group Camping and 
Recreation Area 

 

. 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.23 Northern Gateway Public School Division & GRM 
NGPSD & GRM  

 7.24 Cost of finalizing DeBolt Seniors Housing Project  
COSTS OF FINALIZNG 
DEBOLT SENIORS 
HOUSING PROJECT 

 7.25 Grovedale Seniors Housing & Project History  
GROVEDALE 
SENIOURS HOUSING 
& PROJECT HISTORY 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.26 Cost Proposal to move Recycle bins within the Hamlet of Grande Cache  
COST PROPOSAL TO 
MOVE RECYCLE BINS 
WITHIN HAMLET OF 
GRANDE CACHE  

 

 

 

 7.4 BF 76902 Culvert Replacement and Other Work 
BF76902 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 

 7.5 BF 77244 Culvert Replacement and Other Work  
BF77244 

 7.6 BF 77976 Culvert Replacement and Other Work 
BF77976   

 
BF77976 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 7.27 Managers Reports  
MANAGERS REPORTS 

NOTICE OF MOTION  

 10.0 MEMBERS BUSINESS 
#10 MEMBER 
REPORTS AND 
EXPENSE CLAIMS 

 
 
 

WARD 1 COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 

WARD 2 COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

WARD 3 COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON

  
WARD 4 COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY

 

WARD 5 COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

WARD 6 
 

COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON

 
 
 
WARD 7 

 
COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 

 
 
WARD 8 

COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH

WARD 8 COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF 

WARD 9 
 
 
 

COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 
 
WARD 9 

 
COUNCILLOR TYLER OLSEN

 
MEMBERS BUSINESS 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
11.0 ADJOURNMENT

#11 
ADJOURNMENT 
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Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  June 14, 2022 
MD of Greenview 
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PROPOSAL: 

10.64 hectare

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS OR ENGAGEMENT
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Bylaw No. 22-906 Re-designate from Agricultural One (A-1) District to Agricultural 
Two (A-2) District

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 22-906 to re-designate a 10.64-hectare ± area 
from Agricultural One (A-1) District to Agricultural Two (A-2) District within PT. NE-05-70-06-W6. 

MOTION: That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 22-906 to re-designate a 10.64-hectare ± area from
Agricultural One (A-1) District to Agricultural Two (a-2) District within NE-05-70-06-W6.

10.64 hectare
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Alternative #1:

Alternative #2:

 

 

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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29



30



31



32



33



BYLAW NO. 22-906 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Bylaw

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of 
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 18-800, being the Land Use Bylaw for the

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

PURSUANT TO 

REEVE       

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
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Bylaw 22-905

SCHEDULE “A”

35



Bylaw 22-904 Records Retention and Disposition

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council give first reading to Bylaw 22-904 Records Retention and Disposition. 

MOTION: That Council give second reading to Bylaw 22-904 Records Retention and Disposition.

36



 

 
 

o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

37



 

o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

38



 

o
o
o

 

 

Alternative #1:

. 
 

.  
 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

. 
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Bylaw 22-904

BYLAW NO. 22-904
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta, to provide the 
management, retention and disposition of its records.

Whereas

Whereas

Whereas

Whereas, Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act,

Whereas

Whereas, 

Whereas,

Whereas

1
40



Bylaw 22-904

Therefore,

TITLE

DEFINITIONS
CAO

Destruction

Disposition

Digitized

Digital Record

ERMS

Greenview

Legal Hold

Record

Retention Period

Substantive Record

Transitory Record 

2
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Bylaw 22-904

PRINCIPLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

3
42



Bylaw 22-904
4
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Bylaw 22-904

SEVERABILITY

REPEAL

COMING INTO FORCE

5
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

A - ADMINISTRATION: Contains records of routine administration and office services functions. 
A00 ADMINISTRATION – GENERAL 

3 D 

A01 ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS 

Where possible, these 
records should be filed by their subject, not the originator or recipient of the report and/or correspondence. 
Excludes: 

Membership Fees - see F01

5** D** 

A02 STAFF COMMITTEES AND MEETINGS 

Excludes: 
Council Minutes and Agendas - see C03, C04 
Council Boards and Committees - see C05, C06

5** D** 

A03 COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND ARCHITECTURE INFORMATION 

, 

Excludes:
Reports - file by subject 
Quotes and Tenders - see F18 

SO D 

A04 CONFERENCES 

Excludes: 
Accommodation & Travel Arrangements – see A13 
Ceremonies and Events - see M02 
Employee and Council Expenses - see F09 
Invoices - see F01 
Rental Agreements - see L14

3** D 

6
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

A05 CONSULTANTS CONTRACTORS 

Excludes: 
Invoices - see F01
Quotations and Tenders - see F18 
Reports - file by subject

5** D 

A07 OFFICE EQUIPMENT AND FURNITURE 

Excludes: 
Assets - see F06
Service Agreements - see L14

E+3 

A08 OFFICE SERVICES 
3 

SO 

D 

D 

A09 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES Vital 

P P 

A10 RECORDS MANAGEMENT 

Excludes: 
Retention By-Law - see C01 
Record Destruction Lists - see A11 

SO+10 D 

A11 RECORDS DISPOSITION 
P P 

A12 TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS 

7
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes: 
Agreements - see L04 or L14
Licences - see P09 
Long Distance Call Records - see F01

E+6 D 

A13 TRAVEL AND ACCOMMODATION 

Excludes:
Employee and Council expenses – see F09

3 D 

A15 VENDORS AND SUPPLIERS 

Excludes: 
Purchase Orders and Requisitions - see F17 
Office Equipment - owned and leased - see A07 
Fleet Management - see V01 
Expressions of Interest – see T06

5 D** 

A16 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS Vital 

Where possible, these records should be filed by their subject, not by originator or recipient. 
Excludes: 

Legislation – see L10 or L11

10 D** 

A17 FOIP ACCESSIBILITY OF RECORDS 

Excludes:  
Complaints and Inquiries - see M04 or by subject 

10 D 

A18 SECURITY 

Excludes: 
Vandalism Reports - see P05 

3 
E+3 

D 
D 

8
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Computer Security - see A03 

A19 FACILITY CONSTRUCTION RENOVATION Vital 

Excludes: 
Facility operations & maintenance– see A20 
Lagoons/Wastewater sites – see E03 
Solid Waste Sites/Transfer station buildings – see E07 
Water Treatment Plants & Water Points – see E08

E+10 D**  

A20 FACILITY AND PROPERTY MAINTENANCE Vital 

Excludes: 
Lagoons/Wastewater sites - see E03 
Parks Management - see R04 
Public Service Buildings (Fire stations) - see P17 
Recreational Facilities Operations & Maintenance - see R05
Solid Waste Sites & Transfer stations buildings - see E07 
Water Treatment Plants & Water Points - see E08

E+10 D** 

A21 FACILITY BOOKING 
3 D 

A22 ACCESSIBILITY OF SERVICES 
5 D 

A24 ACCESS CONTROL AND PASSWORDS 
SO+5 D 

A25 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

9
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes: 
Employee performance appraisal - see H03
Council Goals & Objectives - see C08

10  D  

C - COUNCIL, BOARDS AND BY-LAWS - Contains records of the establishment of policies, by-laws, the operations of Council and of Boards for which Council is 
responsible. 

C00 COUNCIL, BOARDS AND BYLAWS - GENERAL 
3 D 

C01 BYLAWS Vital 

Excludes:
Background information - file by subject

P  P  

C02 BYLAWS - OTHERS 
SO D 

C03 COUNCIL AGENDAS Vital 

P  P  

C04 COUNCIL MINUTES Vital 

Excludes: 
Council Committees and Boards - see C06

P  P  

C05 COUNCIL COMMITTEES & BOARDS AGENDAS Vital 

 
Excludes: 

Appeal Hearing Agendas (SDAB, Pest Control, etc.) - See L01

P 

5  

P 

D**  

C06 COUNCIL COMMITTEES & BOARDS MINUTES Vital 

Excludes:
Appeal Hearings (SDAB, Pest Control, etc.) – See L01

P 

5 

P 

D** 
10
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

C07 ELECTION 
P 
E+6w 

E+12w 

P 
D 

D 

C08 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
SO+10 D** 

C09 MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 
P P 

C10 MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS - OTHERS 
SO D** 

C12 BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
P P 

C13 ACCOUNTABILITY, TRANSPARENCY & GOVERNANCE 
10 D** 

D - DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING: Contains records of development and planning such as, general studies, official plans, zoning, drainage etc. 
D00 DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING - GENERAL 

3 D 

D01 DEMOGRAPHIC STUDIES 

Excludes: 
Vital Statistics - see L12

P P 

D02 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Vital 
11
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes:
Demographic Studies - see D01
Residential Development - see D04 
Tourism Development - see D06
Non-Greenview Industrial/Commercial Development - see D21

E+10 D** 

D03 DRAINAGE/FLOOD CONTROL Vital 

Excludes:
Environmental Monitoring - see E13, E15 
Waste Management - see E07

P P 

D04 RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Excludes:
Industrial & Residential Development Permits – see LD

E+10 D** 

D06 TOURISM DEVELOPMENT 
E+10 D** 

D08 OFFICIAL PLANS Vital 

P P 

D09 OFFICIAL PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATIONS 
P P 

D12 SUBDIVISIONS Vital 

P P 

12
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

D14 ZONING Vital

Excludes: 
Zoning Bylaws - see C01 
Variances - see D12 or LD

P P 

D15 EASEMENTS Vital

Excludes:
Original Agreements - see L04

P P 

D17 ANNEXATION AMALGAMATION 
P P 

D18 COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

Excludes: 
Economic Development – see D02

E+6 D** 

D19 MUNICIPAL ADDRESSING Vital 

P P 

D20 REFERENCE PLANS 
P P 

D21 INDUSTRIAL COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Excludes:
Agricultural Development – see D23 
Industrial Road Use Approvals - see P11 

5 D** 

D22 DIGITAL MAPPING 
P P 

D23 AGRICULTURAL DEVELOPMENT Vital

13
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

10 D** 

D27 DEVELOPMENT REQUESTS Vital

 
Excludes: 

Road Construction projects - See T04 
Property Development – D12 or LD

P P 

E - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES - Contains records of the provision of public works and other environmental services other than roads. Includes water works, 
sewers, treatment plants, waste management, gravel pits/stockpiles and environmental monitoring, includes tree removal and pruning. 

E00 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES - GENERAL 
3 D 

E03 WASTEWATER AND COLLECTION SYSTEMS Vital 

Excludes: 
Private Sewage Disposal Systems – see E12

P P 

E04 TREES 
5 D 

E06 UTILITIES 
P P 

E07 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT Vital 

Excludes:
Environment Planning - see D03

E+25 

10  

D 

D  

E08 WATER WORKS (Drinking Water Treatment and Distribution) Vital 

14
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

P P 

E10 PITS AND QUARRIES Vital 

Excludes: 
Lease agreement/purchase - see L07

E+10 D** 

E12 PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 
P P 

E13 WATER MONITORING 

Excludes:
Complaints and Inquiries - see M04

10  D 

E14 WATER SAMPLING 

Excludes:
Adverse samples – see E15 
Complaints and Inquiries - see Site 

10 
5 

D 

E15 CHEMICAL SAMPLING OF WATER Vital 

P P 

15
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes:
Complaints and Inquiries – see Site

E18 ENVIRONMENTAL & MUNICIPAL RESERVES 
P P 

F - FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING - Contains records of the management of funds. 
F00 FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING - GENERAL 

3 D 

F01 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Vital 

Excludes: 
Receipts – See F19 
Cancelled Cheques - see F07 
Employee and council expenses – see F09

10 D 

F02 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Vital 

Excludes: 
Assessment Hearings – L01
Tax Assessments, Rolls and Tax Arrears - see F22 
Write-offs - see F23

10 D 

F03 AUDITS 

Excludes: 
Operational audits - see relevant subject 
Audited Financial Statements - See - F10

E+10 D 

16
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

F04 BANKING Vital 

Excludes: 
Bank Statements - see F07 
Cancelled Cheques – see F07

10 D 

F05 BUDGETS AND ESTIMATES Vital 

Excludes
Working papers and Background documentation - see F26 

10 

P 

D** 

P 

F06 ASSETS Vital

Excludes: 
Land Acquisition and Sale - see L07 
Office Equipment Disposal - See A07 
Vehicle & Equipment Disposal – See V01 V02 V03 V04 V05 

E+10 D** 

F07 CHEQUES 
10 D 

F08 DEBENTURES AND BONDS Vital 

Excludes:
General Ledger and Journals -see F15 
Project Bonds & Security Deposits - see F25

E+10 D 

F09 EMPLOYEE AND COUNCIL EXPENSES Vital 

10 D 

F10 FINANCIAL AUDIT STATEMENTS Vital 

Excludes: 

P P 

17
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

All working notes, calculations, and background documentation - see F26 
Auditor Agreement – L04

F11 GRANTS AND LOANS Vital 

10 

E+10 

D 

D 
F12 INVESTMENTS Vital 

E+10 D 

F15 GENERAL LEDGERS AND JOURNALS – See Microsoft Dynamics GP Vital 

P P 
F17 PURCHASE ORDERS Vital

Excludes:
Quotations and Tenders - see F18

10 D 

F18 QUOTATIONS AND TENDERS Vital 

Excludes:  
Successful Tender package, evaluation and awarding of tenders/quotations, acceptance letters – 
transfer to subject file post awarding

E+5 D** 

F19 RECEIPTS 
10 D 

F22 TAX AND ASSESSMENT Vital 

Excludes:
Annual Tax Notices – see F02 
Assessment complaints resolved - see F02
Correspondence related to tax issues not of a long-term significance - see F02
Mortgage Companies - see F02 

P P 

F23 WRITE-OFFS and BANKRUPTCY Vital 

18
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes:
Accounts Receivable Refunds - see F02

E+12 

37 

D  

F25 SECURITY DEPOSITS Vital 

E+10 D 

F26 WORKING PAPERS 
E+2 D 

H - HUMAN RESOURCES - Contains records of the municipality's relationship with its employees, employee records and general staff programs. 

H00 HUMAN RESOURCES - GENERAL 
3 D 

H02 BENEFITS 
SO D 

H03 EMPLOYEE RECORDS Vital 

Excludes:
Claims – see H13 
Grievances – see H14
Harassment – see H15

E+5  D 

19
58



BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Health & Safety Training - see P07

H06 JOB DESCRIPTIONS 
SO D** 

H07 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
E+5 D** 

H08 ORGANIZATION Vital

Excludes:
Job Descriptions - see H06

SO D** 

H11 RECRUITMENT 

Excludes:
Successful applications – see H03

1 D 

H12 ABSTRACTS & CERTIFICATES 

Excludes:
Employee Records - see H03

SO D 

H13 CLAIMS Vital 

 
Excludes:

Non-lost-time incidents or accidents – See P07

E+10 

20 or 
40 

D 

D 

20
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

H14 GRIEVANCES 

Excludes: 
Harassment & Violence – see H15

E+10 D 

H15 INVESTIGATIONS/TERMINATIONS Vital

Excludes:
Grievances – see H14

E+10 D 

H16 PAYROLL YEAR END Vital 

Excludes: 
Transactions from 2017 to present - See Penny Employee Payroll System

P P 

L - LEGAL AFFAIRS - Contains records of litigation, legislation, contracts, agreements, insurance and real estate matters. 
L00 LEGAL AFFAIRS - GENERAL 

 

3 D 

L01 APPEALS AND HEARINGS Vital 

Excludes:
Litigation - see L02, L03
Investigations/Terminations – see H15
Property Assessment Complaints: resolved – see F02

P P 

L02 CLAIMS AGAINST MUNICIPALITY Vital 

Excludes:
Internal Committee/Board appeals and hearings - see L01

E+10 D 

L03 CLAIMS BY MUNICIPALITY Vital 

E+10 D 
21
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes:
Internal Committee/Board appeals and hearings - see L01

L04 CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS - MAJOR Vital 

Excludes: 
Short-term: Office/ Equipment Maintenance /Annual Service Agreements - see L14
Subdivision & Development Agreements - see Land - LD
Land purchases - see L07
Insurance Policies - see L06

E+10 

P 

D** 

P 

L05 INSURANCE APPRAISALS 
E+15 D 

L06 INSURANCE POLICIES Vital 

Excludes:
Employee Group Insurance - see H02

E+15 D 

L07 LAND ACQUISITION AND SALE Vital 

E+20 D** 

L08 LEGAL OPINIONS AND BRIEFS Vital

10 D** 

L09 PRECEDENTS 
SO D 

L10 FEDERAL LEGISLATION 
SO D 
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

L11 PROVINCIAL LEGISLATION 
SO D 

L12 ORGANIZATION / INCORPORATION Vital 

P P 

L14 CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS - SIMPLE Vital 

E+10 D** 

LD - LAND – PROPERTY FILES 
LD LAND Vital 

Excludes: 
Development Permit Advertisements – see P10 
Tax Notices – See F22 

P P  

M - MEDIA AND PUBLIC RELATIONS -  Relationship with the media and the general public. 
M00 MEDIA AND PUBLIC RELATIONS - GENERAL 

3 D 

M01 ADVERTISING 

Excludes:
News Releases - see M06
Land use amendment and development advertisements - see LD/P10 
Recruitment - see H11 
Elections - see C07

3 D** 

M02 CEREMONIES AND EVENTS 

Excludes:
Permit to hold event – see P11

3 D** 
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

M03 CHARITABLE CAMPAIGNS/FUND RAISING 

 
Excludes:

Receipts - see F19

10 D 

M04 COMPLAINTS, COMMENDATIONS AND INQUIRIES 

Excludes: 
FOIP requests - see A17 
Specific Complaints – file by subject 
Road complaints – see T05 

5 D** 

M06 NEWS RELEASES 
5 D** 

M07 PUBLICATIONS - INTERNAL ONLY 
P P 

M09 VISUAL IDENTITY AND INSIGNIA Vital 

P P 

M10 WEBSITE AND SOCIAL MEDIA CONTENT 
5 D 

P - PROTECTION AND ENFORCEMENT SERVICES - Functions of law enforcement, the Health & Safety program, issuance of permits & licences, public protection 
and fire prevention. 

P00 PROTECTION AND ENFORCEMENT SERVICES - GENERAL 
3 D 
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

P01 BYLAW ENFORCEMENT 

Excludes: 
Stop work orders Development /Subdivision – see LD or D12 
Stop work orders Capital projects - file by project 
Inspections - see P07 or P08 
Animal Control Enforcement - see P14 

5 D** 

P02 DAILY OCCURRENCE LOGS 
5 D** 

P03 EMERGENCY PLANNING Vital 
  

SO D** 

P04 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

Excludes: 
Staff Safety Training - see P07 
Personal exposure - see H03 
Manifests - see E07

SO D** 

P05 INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTS Vital 

Excludes:
Security - see A18 
Vehicle Accidents - see L02 or L03

12 D 

P07 HEALTH & SAFETY 
10 D 

P08 INVESTIGATIONS Vital 
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes:
Bylaw Enforcement – see P01

E+10 D** 

P09 LICENCES Vital 

E+10 

P 

D 

P 

P10 DEVELOPMENT PERMITS 

Excludes:
All other permits - see P11 
Property Specific – see LD or D12

P P 

P11 PERMITS, CERTIFICATES, APPROVALS Vital 

Excludes: 
Building Permits - file by subject see P10 
Burial Permits - see S09 
Encroachment Permits - see LD or D12 
Roadside Development Permits - LD 

E+10 

1 

D 

D 

P12 WARRANTS 
E+3 D 

P14 ANIMAL CONTROL 

Excludes: 
Dog Licences - see P09 
Wolf Harvest Incentive contracts

E+5 D 

P16 EMERGENCY SERVICES Vital

10 D 

P17 EMERGENCY FACILITY OPERATIONS 
26
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes: 
Facility Construction & Renovation - see A19 
Facility Property Maintenance - see A20 

E+10 D 

R - RECREATION AND CULTURE: Provision of recreational and cultural services to the immediate and surrounding communities. 
R00 RECREATION AND CULTURE - GENERAL 

3 D 

R02 LIBRARY SERVICES 

Excludes: 
Agreements – see L04 or L14 

E+5 D 

R03 MUSEUM AND ARCHIVAL SERVICES 

Excludes: 
Agreements – see L04 or L14 
Records Management Program - see A10

SO D** 

R04 PARKS CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS AND MANAGEMENT Vital 

Excludes: 
Facilities Construction & Renovation – see A19 
Building and Property Maintenance – see A20

P P 

R05 RECREATIONAL FACILITY AND CLUB OPERATIONS Vital

Excludes: 
Building and Property Maintenance - see A20 
Facility Construction & Renovations – Greenview owned - see A19 

E+10 D 

R06 RECREATIONAL PROGRAMMING 
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

3 D** 

S - SOCIAL AND HEALTH CARE SERVICES: Contains records of social services, health care programs and cemeteries. 

S00 FCSS - GENERAL 
3 D 

S01 FCSS PROGRAMS 
5 D 

S08 PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
5 D 

S09 CEMETERY RECORDS Vital 

P P 

T - TRANSPORTATION SERVICES: Development and improvement of transportation systems. 

T00 TRANSPORTATION SERVICES - GENERAL 
3 D 

T01 ILLUMINATION Vital 

E+6 D 

T02 PARKING 
E+6 D 

T03 PUBLIC TRANSIT 
E+3 D** 

T04 ROAD CONSTRUCTION Vital
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Excludes:
Design and Planning future goals - see T05
Bridges and Culverts – see T11
Routine maintenance and minor improvements to road systems - see T06 
Studies not associated with construction project - see T05

P P 

T05 ROAD DESIGN AND PLANNING Vital 

P P 

T06 ROAD MAINTENANCE Vital 

E+10 D 

T07 SIGNS SIGNALS 

Excludes:
Visual Identity Program - see M09

E+3 D 

T08 TRAFFIC 
P P 

T09 ROADS AND LANES OPENINGS/CLOSURES 

Excludes:
Land Acquisition and Sales - see L07
Road Closing By-Laws - see C01

P P 

T11 BRIDGES Vital 

P P 

T12 RAILWAYS 
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

P P 
V - VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT - Contains records of fleet management, mobile equipment, protective equipment and their related maintenance. 

V00 VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT - GENERAL 
3 D 

V01 FLEET MANAGEMENT – Motorized /Drivable Vital 

Excludes: 
Insurance Policies - see L06
Accident Claims - see L02, L03 
Leases/Contracts - see L14 
Unsuccessful quotes/tenders – see F18

E+5 D 

V02 MOBILE EQUIPMENT – Pull by motorized vehicle Vital 

Excludes: 
Insurance Policies – see L06
Accident Claims – see L02, L03
Leases/Contracts – see L14 
Unsuccessful quotes/tenders

E+5 D 

V03 TRANSPORTABLE EQUIPMENT – Carry Vital 

Excludes: 
Leases/Contracts - see L14 
Unsuccessful quotes/tenders – see F18 

E+5 D 

V04 PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 
E+5 D 

V05 ANCILLARY EQUIPMENT– Fixed Vital 

Excludes: 

E+5 D 
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BYLAW 22-904 SCHEDULE A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

DISPOSITION: D   E     **   P = 

Class 
Code 

Record Classification 
Responsible 

Dept. 
Retain 
Years 

Final 
Disposition 

Remarks 

Leases/Contracts - see L14 
Unsuccessful quotes/tenders – see F18
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Bylaw 22-878 Grande Cache Cemetery 

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council give third reading to Bylaw 22-878 Grande Cache Cemetery as presented.
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Alternative #1:

Alternative #2

 

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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BYLAW No. 22-878
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 to provide for the control and regulation 
of the Grande Cache Cemetery

Whereas, 

Whereas,

  

Whereas, 

Therefore, 

TITLE 

DEFINITIONS

Burial Permit

Block

Cemetery

Chief Administrative Officer

Columbarium
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Council

Cremated Remains

Director of Vital Statistics

Disinter

Disinterment Permit

Fees and Charges

Greenview 

Indigent

Interment

Hours of Work

Maintenance 

Marker

Medical Health Officer
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Monument

Monument Foundation

Niche

Owner 

Person 

Plot

Reserve Plot

Sales Contract

Scattering

Bylaw Enforcement Officer

Veteran

DUTIES, RIGHTS AND POWERS
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RECORDS AND SALE OF PLOTS
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INTERMENT AND DISINTERMENT 
Bodies of Deceased Persons Regulation

Cemeteries Act
Public Health Act

General Regulations
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CREMATED REMAINS 

MONUMENTS 
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MAINTENANCE AND CARE 
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GENERAL PROVISIONS 
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ENFORCEMENT 

SEVERBILITY 
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REPEAL 

COMING INTO FORCE

85



2021 Draft Financial Statements

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council receive the delegation from Metrix Group LLP for information as presented.

MOTION: That Council approve the 2021 Audited Financial Statements as presented by Metrix Group LLP 
Chartered Accountant for submission to the Minister of Alberta Municipal Affairs. 

Alternative #1:
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INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

. 
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Annual financial statements
276(1)

(2)

(3)

RSA 2000 cM-26 s276;2014 cC-10.2 s181
Financial information return
277(1)

(2)

1994 cM-26.1 s277;1995 c24 s34 RSA 2000  
Returns and reports to Minister 
278

1994 cM-26.1 s278 
 

Auditor’s reports  
281(1)

(2)
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(3)

(4)
RSA 2000 cM-26 s281;2014 cC-10.2 s181 
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June 28, 2022

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16
PO Box 1079
4806–36 Avenue
Valleyview, AB T0H 3N0

Attention:  Members of MD Council

Dear Council Members:

RE:  2021 AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT

The purpose of this communication is to summarize certain matters arising from the audit that we 
believe would be of interest to MD Council.  

The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion.  Our audit was not designed for the sole purpose of identifying matters 
to communicate. Accordingly, our audit would not necessarily identify all such matters that may be of 
interest to Council, and it is inappropriate to conclude that no such matters exist.

This communication should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and our report thereon, 
and it is intended solely for the use of MD Council and should not be distributed to external parties 
without our prior consent. Metrix Group LLP accepts no responsibility to a third party who uses this 
communication.

SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS FROM THE AUDIT

Our objective is to communicate appropriately to Council any deficiencies in internal control that we
have identified during the audit and that, in our professional judgment, are of sufficient importance to 
merit being reported to Council.

The audit findings contained in this letter did not have a material effect on the MD’s financial statements, 
and as such, our audit report is without reservation with respect to these matters.
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Municipal District of Greenview No. 16
June 28, 2022
Page Two

2

Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control

A significant control deficiency exists where significant misstatements could occur if controls are not 
designed, implemented or operated in such a way that the control is able to prevent, or detect and 
correct, misstatements on a timely basis.

We noted significant improvements in this area, however during the course of the audit, two significant
adjustments were required, to government transfers revenue and gravel inventory, in order to ensure 
the MD’s 2021 financial statements were not materially misstated.

Significant Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for determining the significant accounting policies.  The choice of different 
accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial position and results of the
MD.  The application of those policies often involves significant estimates and judgments by 
management.

Accounting Estimates

The MD has made the following significant accounting estimates in preparing its financial statements.

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets - $23,587,129 (2020 - $26,631,251)

The estimated useful economic life of tangible capital assets is management’s best estimate.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - $4,892,568 (2020 - $3,649,622)

This estimate is comprised of an allowance for potentially uncollectible taxes.  Due to the fact 
that municipalities have little recourse with respect to linear tax balances, and due to the current 
economic conditions, MD management has provided an allowance for outstanding balances 
where management believes there is a significant risk to the MD regarding collectability.

Grande Cache Landfill Closure / Post-Closure Liability - $6,000,000 (2020 - $6,000,000)

The nature of this estimate is very subjective, depends on many variables, and is based on 
information provided by consultants that specialize in this area.  The consultants provided the 
MD with cost estimates to close the existing landfill utilizing two methods to cap the landfill.  The
cost estimates ranged from approximately $4.8 million to $8.1 million. MD management 
decided to establish a liability of $6.0 million which is approximately in the middle of the two
amounts.  The MD did not make any adjustments to this liability during 2021.D R

 A F T ontrols ontrols are not 
entent, , or or dedetect and 

of the audit, two signinificanficantt
inventory, in order to ensure ure 

nt accounting ounting policies. olicies. The choice of 
effect on the financial financial position and re

nvolves significant nt eestimasti tes and 

nificant accountingcoun estimates in preparstimates in pr

ible Capital Assets -- $2$23,53,587,1298 (202

ususefeful ul economic life of ec tangible ble capitalc

cece for Doubtfor D ful t AccAccounts - $4,892,568

s estiestimate mat is coomprised mprised of of anan allowaallow
that muniicipalicipalities ties have hav little recoecourseurse
economic condconditions,ition MD manage
where managementement belib eves the

GraGr nde Cache Landfill fill CCll

The he nature na of this 
informatimation prov
MD withwith cost
costt estimest
decidedecide
amam

91



Municipal District of Greenview No. 16
June 28, 2022
Page Three

3

Grovedale Lagoon $2,000,000 (2020 - $2,000,000)

During 2018, the MD established an estimated liability related to future decommissioning work 
with respect to the Grovedale Lagoon in the amount of $2,000,000.  This liability is based on 
estimated costs provided by Associated Engineering. We recommend MD administration revisit 
this matter during 2022 to determine if there is any new information as well as to ensure the 
assumptions and calculations are as accurate as possible.

Gravel and Sand Inventory - $8,973,844 (2020 - $8,228,682)

Gravel quantities are estimated using Global Positioning System (GPS) technology.

We are of the opinion that the significant accounting policies, estimates and judgments made by 
management, and financial disclosures do not materially misstate the financial statements taken as a 
whole.  

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Corrected Misstatements

During the course of the audit, we identified sixteen (16) adjustments that were communicated to 
management and subsequently corrected in the financial statements.  This represents a significant 
improvement over the 2020 audit in which we identified fifty-five (55) adjustments.

Uncorrected Misstatements

Uncorrected misstatements aggregated by our Firm for the year ended December 31, 2021, amount to 
a $60,729 understatement of the 2021 annual deficit.

After considering both quantitative and qualitative factors with respect to the uncorrected misstatements 
we accumulated during the audit, we agree with management that the financial statements are not 
materially misstated.

Significant Difficulties Encountered During the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties during the audit that we believe should be brought to the 
attention of Council. We had the full co-operation of MD management and staff throughout our work,
and we received full access to all necessary records and documentation.

Management Representations

Management’s representations are integral to the audit evidence we will gather.  Prior to the release of 
our report, we will require management’s representations in writing to support the content of our report.
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Municipal District of Greenview No. 16
June 28, 2022
Page Four

4

Management Letter

We will be submitting a letter to MD management on other matters that we feel should be brought to 
their attention.  We encourage Council to review the management letter.  

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

We believe it is important that we communicate at least annually with MD Council regarding all 
relationships between the MD and our Firm that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence.

In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant rules and 
related interpretations prescribed by CPA Alberta and applicable legislation, covering such matters as:

(a) holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client;

(b) holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to 
exert significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

(c) personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or 
retired partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client;

(d) economic dependence on a client; and

(e) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding independence 
matters.

We are not aware of any relationships between the MD and ourselves that, in our professional 
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence that have occurred from January 1, 
2021, to June 28, 2022.
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Municipal District of Greenview No. 16
June 28, 2022
Page Five

5

We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance we received during the audit 
from the MD staff.  

Yours truly,

METRIX GROUP LLP

Philip J. Dirks, CPA, CA
Partner

PJD/law

cc: Stacey Wabick, Chief Administrative Officer
Ed Kaemingh, Director of Corporate Services
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

D R
A F

T 
OF GREENVIEW NO. 16OF G

Financial Statemenanc

e Year Ended December 3Ended D

95



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Other Information

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

EDMONTON
 METRIXGROUP.CA
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Responsibilities of Management aResponsibilities of Management a
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(continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2021

2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Note 2) $ 81,650,563

(Note 3) 19,362,321
602,000

(Note 4) -
(Note 5) 84,653,307

186,268,191

LIABILITIES
16,205,161

Note 6 6,473,237
(Note 7) 2,390,450

(Note 11) 6,000,000

31,068,848

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 155,199,343

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Note 9) 382,498,280

(Note 10) 9,815,384
1,344,234

393,657,898

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (NOTE 12) $548,857,241

(Note 16)

ON BEHALF OF COUNCIL:D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT2121

,000,000
-

4,653,307 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT186,268,1911

F TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T
16,205,1616,205

6,473,2376,47
2,390,4502
6,000,000FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF31,068,84831,0FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF155,195,19

e 10)0

RPLUS RPLUS (NOTE 1(NOTE 2)2

Note 1Note 16)6

ON BEHALF OF COUNCIL:ALF O
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
(Actual)

(Note 22)

REVENUE
(Schedule 2) $ 91,579,141

(Schedule 3) 11,971,875
6,542,441
3,645,366

860,783
380,407
206,643

37,605
30,581

-

115,254,842

EXPENSES (including amortization)
75,223,855
18,809,506
15,057,469

6,082,791
5,379,274
5,008,005
2,165,814
1,974,496
1,148,078

130,849,288

ANNUAL OPERATIONAL DEFICIT (15,594,446)

OTHER REVENUE (EXPENSE)
(Schedule 3) 2,312,616

(Note 23) 437,600
45,428

(Note 24) -

2,795,644

ANNUAL DEFICIT (12,798,802)

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 561,656,043

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR $548,857,241D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT,141,141

71,875875
6,542,441
3,645,366

860,783
380,407
206,643
37,6053
30,58130

-FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF115,254,8421FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF75,223,875,223
18,808,80
15,AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

ATIONAL DEFICITATIONAL DEFICIT

EVENUE (EXPENSE)UE (EXPENSE)
(Schedule 3dule 3

(Note 2

(Note 24)

ANNUAL DEFICITEFICI

ACCUMULATED SURED 

ACCUMULATED ACCUMULATED
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
(Actual)

(Note 22)

ANNUAL DEFICIT $ (12,798,802)

(25,566,337)
(Note 23) (437,600)

(Note 24) -
173,478

23,587,128
(45,428)

(2,288,759)

(707,656)
(99,256)

(806,912)

DECREASE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (15,894,473)

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 171,093,816

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR $155,199,343

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT,337,337))

437,600600)
-

173,478
23,587,128

(45,428)

F TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T(2,288,75928 )FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF((707,65670 )
(99,256)FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF(806,912)

A FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA F((15,894,415,894

OF YEARF YEAR 171,AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAYEAR $AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
$ (12,798,802)

(45,428)
23,587,128

413,386
(1,089,949)

(Note 24) -
(Note 23) (437,600)

9,628,735

(5,405,096)
(99,256)
219,759

3,200,801
(707,656)

-

6,837,287

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
173,478

(25,566,337)
(27,238,438)
68,928,301

36,388

16,333,392

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(453,911)

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEAR 22,716,768

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 58,933,795

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 81,650,563

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT,428,428))

587,128128
413,386

(1,089,949)
-

(437,600)

F TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T9,628,73562

((5,405,0965,40 )
(99,256)
219,759

3,200,801
((707,6567FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF6,

ACTIVITIESCTIVI

EASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALAND C

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BALENT

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTCASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Schedule of Equity in Tangible Capital Assets Schedule 1
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $378,392,944

25,566,337
(Note 23) 437,600

(Note 24) -
(456,570)
328,520

(23,587,128)
(39,687)
453,911

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $381,095,927

(Note 9) $382,498,280
(2,390,450)

988,097

$381,095,927

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT3737

,600,600
-

(456,570)
328,520

((23,587,128)
(39,687)
453,911

F TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T
$381,095,9271,095FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF$382,498,280$382

((2,390,4502,3
988,0988FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF$381,
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Schedule of Net Taxation Schedule 2
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
(Actual)

(Note 22)

TAXATION
$ 62,449,519

62,344,582

124,794,101

REQUISITIONS
28,543,062

3,653,153
983,291

35,454

33,214,960

NET MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAXES $ 91,579,141

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT,519,519

44,582582 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT124,794,101 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT28,543,062
3,653,15365

983,291983
35,4543FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF33,214,960FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF$ 91,579,141$ 91,5

A FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA F
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Schedule of Government Transfers Schedule 3
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2021
(Actual)

(Note 22)

TRANSFERS FOR OPERATING
$ 8,396,077

3,575,798

11,971,875

TRANSFERS FOR CAPITAL
2,312,616

TOTAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS $ 14,284,491

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT,077,077

575,798798 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT11,971,875 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT2,312,616

F TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T
$ 14,284,4914,284FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Schedule of Segmented Information Schedule 4
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

REVENUE

EXPENSES

NET REVENUE (DEFICIT)

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA F
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Schedule of Segmented Information Schedule 5
For the year ended December 31, 2020

REVENUE

EXPENSES

 NET REVENUE (DEFICIT)

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA F
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)  Reporting Entity

(b)  Basis of Accounting

(c)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

(d)  Investments

(e)  Loans ReceivableD R
 A F T 

)  Cash and Cash Equivalentsd Cash Equi

(d)  Investments(d)  Inve

(e)  Loans RLoans 
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
(f)  Inventories for Consumption

(g)  Tax Revenue

Municipal Government Act

(h)  Tangible Capital Assets

(i)  Over-levies and under-leviesD R
 A F T 

(i)  Over-levies and unver-lev
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
(j)  Government Transfers

(k)  Pension Expenses

(l)  Contaminated Sites

(m)  Land Held for Resale

(n)  Measurement Uncertainty

(o)  New Accounting Standards not yet Adopted
PS 3280 Asset Retirement

Obligations

PS 3400 RevenueD R
 A F T 

asurement Uncertaintysurement Uncertainty

(o)  New Accow Ac

ObOb
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2021

$ 70,110,511
11,520,737

19,315

$ 81,650,563

3.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2021

$ 14,216,247
6,109,706
2,940,839

988,097
-

24,254,889

(4,892,568)

$ 19,362,321

4.  LOANS RECEIVABLE
2021

$ -

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT3737

,315,315 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT1,650,563 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T202102FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF$ 14,216,24714,21
6,109,7066
2,940,839

988,097FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF24,254,25

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRECEIVABLECEIVA

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

5.  INVESTMENTS
2021

$ 655,135

57,493,222
26,500,000

83,993,222

4,950

$ 84,653,307

6.  DEFERRED REVENUE

4,287,087
1,001,586

532,193
185,423

169,325

111,538

105,085

81,000

-
$ -

$ 6,473,237D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT493,222222

6,500,000 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT83,993,222

F TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T4,950

F TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T
$ 84,653,3074,653FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

R
A

R
A

R
A

R
A

R
A
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A

R
A
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A
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A

R
A
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A
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A

R
A

R
A

R
A

R
A
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

7.  LONG-TERM DEBT
2021

$ 988,098

666,188

664,837

71,327

$ 2,390,450

8.  DEBT LIMITS
Municipal Government Act

2021

$172,882,263
(2,390,450)

$170,491,813

$ 28,813,711
(577,889)

$ 28,235,822D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT666,18818

664,837

71,32771FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF$ 2,390,450$ 2,3FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRMITSTS

Municipal GovernmMunicipal Governm
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

9.  TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

2021

$ 113,594,968
56,571,899
28,562,312
27,319,105
4,418,919
2,653,998

68,899

233,190,100

116,278,968
13,007,078
12,960,520
7,061,614

$ 382,498,280

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT,968,968

71,8991,899
8,562,3123

27,319,105
4,418,919
2,653,998

68,899

F TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF TF T233,190,1001

116,278,968116,27
13,007,07813
12,960,520
7,061,614FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF$ 382,498,28$ 382,4FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
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A
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A

R
A
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A
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A
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A

R
A

R
A

R
A

R
A
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

9.  TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (CONT'D)

10.  INVENTORIES FOR CONSUMPTION
2021

$ 8,973,844
841,540

$ 9,815,384

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

R
A

R
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R
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ACONSUMPTIONCONSU

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R

D
R
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

11.  LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE LIABILITY

2021

$ 4,850,000
1,150,000

6,000,000

-%

-

100.0%

$ (6,000,000)

12.  ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
2021

$ 4,197,393
(Note 13) 163,563,921

(Schedule 1) 381,095,927

$548,857,241

2

$

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD12.  ACCUMULATED SUULAT

116



MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

13.  RESTRICTED SURPLUS
2021

$ 71,410,896
15,000,000
14,186,836
12,745,926
11,304,736

7,726,221
5,177,187
4,827,526
4,255,010
3,772,682
3,032,586
3,000,000
2,710,021
2,000,000
1,347,447

966,847
100,000

-

$163,563,921

(a)  Road Infrastructure 

(b)  Project Carry Forward 

(c)  Economic Development

(d)  Facilities 

(e)  Bridge Replacement

(f)  Wastewater

(g)  Water

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT0000

,836,836
45,926926

1,304,736
7,726,221
5,177,187
4,827,526
4,255,010
3,772,68277
3,032,5863,032
3,000,0003,00
2,710,0212
2,000,000
1,347,447

966,8479
100,0100

$16

ct Carry Forward ct Carry Forward 

(c)  Economic DevelopmentDevelop

(d)  Facilities (d)  Fac

(e)  Bridge Redge R

(f)  (f)  
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

13.  RESERVES (CONT'D)
(h)  Equipment and Vehicle Fleet

(i)  Operating Contingency

(j)  Fire Apparatuses

(k)  Disaster Response

(l)  Recreation

(m)   Fire Facilities 

(n)  Gravel Pit Reclamation

(o)  Solid Waste Reclamation

(p)  Grovedale Daycare

(q)  Greenview Family and Community Support Services (FCSS)

14.  CREDIT FACILITYD R
 A F T 

mation

Waste ReclamationWaste Reclamation

(p)  Grovedale Daycareaycare

(q)  Greenview Family and (q)  Greenview Family and 

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD14.  CREDIT FAC14.  CREDIT FAC
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

15.  SALARIES AND BENEFITS DISCLOSURE

2021
Total

Elected Officials:
$ 84,966

83,959
83,070
80,248
74,319
74,177
73,275
71,023
69,888
68,493

Total for Elected Officials: $ 763,418

Chief Administrative Officer
179,200

Chief Administrative Officer
$ 129,585

$ 308,785

Designated Officers (3) $ 870,514

alal TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT84,966
83,959
83,070
80,248
74,3197
74,17774
73,2757
71,023
69,888
68,493

A FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA F$ 763,4763
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

16.  CONTINGENCIES

17.  LOCAL AUTHORITIES PENSION PLAN

Public Sector Pension Plans Act

18.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

D R
 A F T TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

19.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
(a)  Aggregate Supply Agreement

(b)  Alberta Transportation - Twinning of Highway 40

20.  SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Note 1
 (Schedule 4 & 5)

21.  TRUST FUNDS

Ending

$ 326,420
73,926

-

$ 400,346

D R
 A F T 
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

22.  BUDGET FIGURES

2021
(Actual)

$ (12,798,802)

15,569,884

(453,911)
(26,003,937)

$ (23,686,766)

23.  CONTRIBUTED TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

24.  RESTRUCTURING

D R
 A F T 20212021

(Actual)Actual)TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT$ (12,798,802802))

15,569,884

(45
(26FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FA FL ASSETSASSETS

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRUCTURINGTURING
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MD OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

25.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

26.  APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D R
 A F T 

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAEMENTSNTS AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
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Town of Grande Cache Policy Repeal

Provincial

Council Bylaw/Policy

MOTION: That Council repeal the following obsolete Town of Grande Cache policies:  
Business Incentives 305/15
Citizen Engagement 438/12
Code of Conduct for Members of Council and Council Committees 307/14
Conflict of Interest 265/09
Council Responsibilities 449/16
Delegates Appearing Before Council 459/17
Departure gift 265/09
Donation and Sponsorship 204/14
Honorarium and Compensation 554/17
Joint Funding of Capital Projects with the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 073/17
Open Public Forum at Regular Council Meetings 340/14
Orientation 265/09
Property Tax Cancellation, Reduction and Refund 304/15
Public Participation 250/18
Risk Management 262/10
Strategic and Long-Term Planning 439/12

124



 

125



 

  

 

Alternative #1:  

 

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Business Incentives Page 1 of 2 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 305/15 
Department Council Effective Date October 14, 2015 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

POLICY STATEMENT 

POLICY

(no increase in taxes)
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Business Incentives Page 2 of 2 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 305/15 
Department Council Effective Date October 14, 2015 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures
129



Form No. C- October 2015 

Town of Grande Cache

Business Incentives 
Information Sheet 

Exciting News for Local Business! 
As you know . . . 
 

The advantage for your business . . . 

How it works . . . 

Existing Business:

Your existing business Additional building 

Original Assessed Value - Property Improvements 

Year 1 – Taxes based on original assessed value only, no increase - $100,000 
Year 2 – Taxes based on original assessed value plus 1/3 of improvements 

$100,000 + $10,000 (1/3 of $30,000) = $110,000 
Year 3 - Taxes based on original assessed value plus 2/3 of improvements 

$100,000 + $20,000 (2/3 of $30,000) = $120,000 
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New Business: 

Your vacant lot  Building Construction  New Business! 

Original Assessed Value - Property Improvements 

Year 1 – Taxes based on original assessed land value only, no increase - 
$30,000

Year 2 – Taxes based on original assessed value plus 1/3 of the new assessment 
based on completion of improvements 

$30,000 + $40,000 (1/3 of $120,000) = $70,000 
Year 3 - Taxes based on original assessed value plus 2/3 the new assessment 

based on completion of improvements 
$30,000 + $80,000 (2/3 of $120,000) = $110,000 

Who is Eligible . . . 

It’s easy ~ Apply Today! 

If you have any questions, please visit the Town Office in the Provincial Building, 10001 Hoppe Avenue 
or contact us at 780.827.3362 
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October 2015 Page 1 of 2 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Business Incentives Application 

Application Information 

If different from above: 

I would prefer that correspondence be mailed to  Applicant Address  Business Address 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Property Information 
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October 2015 Page 2 of 2 

Property Improvements 
Please provide a brief description of proposed development/improvements: 

NOTE:  A copy of the project costs must be submitted with this application 

I/We,              , the registered owner(s) of the business, hereby 
acknowledge and certify that: 

I/We have read and understand the Business Incentives Policy for the Town of Grande Cache, and the 
requirements that must be met to qualify for this incentive, which I/we are now making application. 
The information contained in this application is true and complete to the best of my/our knowledge, and that 
failure to provide complete and accurate information may delay the approval process. 
It is an offence to provide false or misleading information on this application, or at any time hereafter, to any 
person having authority for the enforcement or administration of the policy and that the provision of false or 
misleading information may result in prosecution and/or termination of this incentive. 
The approval of this application under this policy does not permit or condone the violation of any bylaw, statute 
or other regulation in effect in the Town of Grande Cache, and it shall be my/our responsibility to ensure that 
such applicable legislation is complied with at all times. 

Office Use ONLY Date Received 
Business License?  Yes   No   Application Pending 

Taxes Paid to Date?  Yes   No    

Development Permit attached?  Yes   No   Application Pending 

Other Permits Required?  Yes   No   Application Pending 
If ‘yes’ above, please provide details below: 
  Building  Electrical  Plumbing  Other  

Approved  Yes   No   Application Pending 
Comments:

Approved by  Date 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

CITIZEN ENGAGEMENT

Policy Statement 

Definitions 

Citizen
Public

Involvement

Engagement/Participation
Public Involvement

Responsibilities 

a) Citizen Engagement: 

b) Respect for Participants: 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

Procedure

a) Process 

b) Accessible Involvement 

Information is accessible:

Facilities are accessible:
Information is readily available:

c) Citizen Involvement 

1. Sharing Information:
2. Consultation:

3. Active Participation:

d) Citizen Involvement Roadmap 

Understand
Define
Clarify
Details
Develop
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

e) Getting Involved 

We encourage everyone to participate 
Let’s continue to build our Town together 

DECISION MAKING PROCESS

PUBLIC   INPUT                 .
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

f) The Plan 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Code of Conduct for Members of Council and 
Council Committees Page 1 of 7 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 307/14 
Department Council Effective Date September 10, 2014 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

Policy Statement 

Reason for Policy 

Definitions 

Committee

Council

Member

Responsibilities 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Code of Conduct for Members of Council and 
Council Committees Page 2 of 7 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 307/14 
Department Council Effective Date September 10, 2014 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

Schedules
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures Page 1 of 5

Schedule ‘A’
Town of Grande Cache

Code of Conduct for Members of 
Council and Council Committees 

Conduct 

Member Initial         
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures Page 2 of 5

Member Initial         
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures Page 3 of 5

Member Initial         
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures Page 4 of 5

Member Initial         
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures Page 5 of 5
144



TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Council Responsibilities Page 1 of 3 

Section Council Resolution No. 449/16 
Department Council Effective Date September 14, 2016 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

a) The Councillor as an Individual and as a Member of Council 

b) After a Decision has been Reached 

c) Speaking for Council 

d) The Councillor’s Differing Hats 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Council Responsibilities Page 2 of 3 

Section Council Resolution No. 449/16 
Department Council Effective Date September 14, 2016 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

e) Handling Complaints 

f) Councillor Self-Development 

g)  Council Attendance at Meetings 

h) Annual Convention 

i) Other 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Council Responsibilities Page 3 of 3 

Section Council Resolution No. 449/16 
Department Council Effective Date September 14, 2016 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Delegates Appearing Before Council Page 1 of 4

Section 3 Resolution No. 459/17
Department Council Effective Date September 13, 2017

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

1.0 Purpose

2.0 Meetings

3.0 Appearing Before Council

3.1 Delegates Invited by Council to Present 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Delegates Appearing Before Council Page 2 of 4

Section 3 Resolution No. 459/17
Department Council Effective Date September 13, 2017

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

3.2 Delegates Requesting to Present
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Delegates Appearing Before Council Page 3 of 4

Section 3 Resolution No. 459/17
Department Council Effective Date September 13, 2017

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

4.0 Procedures During the Meeting
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Delegates Appearing Before Council Page 4 of 4

Section 3 Resolution No. 459/17
Department Council Effective Date September 13, 2017

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

5.0 Response to the Delegate following the Meeting

6.0 Other
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

DEPARTURE GIFT
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Donation and Sponsorship Policy Page 1 of 2 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 204/14 
Department Council Effective Date May 14, 2014 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

Donations

In-kind Donations

Sponsorships
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Donation and Sponsorship Policy Page 2 of 2 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 204/14 
Department Council Effective Date May 14, 2014 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title COUNCIL HONORARIUM AND COMPENSATION Page 1 of 3 

Section Council Resolution No. 554/17 
Department Council/Administration Effective Date November 8, 2017 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title COUNCIL HONORARIUM AND COMPENSATION Page 2 of 3 

Section Council Resolution No. 554/17 
Department Council/Administration Effective Date November 8, 2017 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

Daily Honorarium 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title COUNCIL HONORARIUM AND COMPENSATION Page 3 of 3 

Section Council Resolution No. 554/17 
Department Council/Administration Effective Date November 8, 2017 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Joint Funding of Capital Projects with the 
Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 Page 1 of 1 

Section 3 - Council Resolution No. 073/17
Department All Effective Date February 22, 2017

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures159



TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title OPEN PUBLIC FORUM AT REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETINGS Page 1 of 1 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 340/14
Department Council Effective Date October 8, 2014

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

ORIENTATION
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Municipal Property Tax Cancellation, Reduction or 
Refund Page 1 of 2 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 304/15 
Department Council Effective Date October 14, 2015 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures

Policy Statement 

Policy 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE 

Policy and Procedures 

Title Municipal Property Tax Cancellation, Reduction or 
Refund Page 2 of 2 

Section C-1 Resolution No. 304/15 
Department Council Effective Date October 14, 2015 

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Public Participation Page 1 of 4

Section 3 Resolution No. 250/18
Department Council Effective Date June 13, 2018

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures 

I. PURPOSE AND APPLICATION  

Municipal Government Act,

Municipal Government Act.  

II. GENERAL POLICY PRINCIPLES 

III. DEFINITIONS  

CAO
Municipal Stakeholders

Municipality
Public Participation

Public Participation Plan

Public Participation Tools
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Public Participation Page 2 of 4

Section 3 Resolution No. 250/18
Department Council Effective Date June 13, 2018

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures 

IV. POLICY RESPOSIBILITIES 

Council Responsibilities 

Administration Responsibilities  
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Public Participation Page 3 of 4

Section 3 Resolution No. 250/18
Department Council Effective Date June 13, 2018

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures 

V. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPPORTUNITIES 

VI. POLICY EXPECTATIONS  

1. Legislative and Policy Implications 
Municipal 

Government Act, the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Policy and Procedures

Title Public Participation Page 4 of 4

Section 3 Resolution No. 250/18
Department Council Effective Date June 13, 2018

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE ~ Policy and Procedures 

2. Public Participation Standards  

VII. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLANS 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

STRATEGIC AND LONG-TERM PLANNING

Policy Statement 

Definitions 

Citizen
Public

Involvement

Engagement/Participation
Strategy

Responsibilities 

a) Standards of Practice: 

b) Citizen Engagement: 
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

Procedure

a) Process 

b) Accessible Involvement 

Information is accessible:

Facilities are accessible:
Information is readily available:

c) Citizen Involvement 

Sharing Information:
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TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE Policy and Procedures

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
MANUAL

Consultation:

Active Participation:

d) Getting Involved 

We encourage everyone to participate 
Let’s continue to build our Town together 

DECISION MAKING PROCESS

Council
Staff

(Public Input) 

Strategic Plan or Long 
Term Plan Development 

(Public Input) 

Council
Review/Approval

Implement
(Public Input) 
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Policy 1039 Annual Ratepayers Barbecues

Provincial

Council Bylaw/Policy

MOTION: That Council approve Policy 1039 “Annual Ratepayers Barbecues” as presented.

MOTION: That Council repeal Policy CO-01 “Annual Ratepayer Barbecues.”

Alternative #1:
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.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL COUNCIL

POLICY NUMBER: CO 01

PURPOSE:

To provide an opportunity to present information to the M.D. ratepayers, to provide ratepayers an opportunity to 
voice concerns, and to foster good rapport with M.D. ratepayers.

POLICY:

Council will hold on an annual basis ratepayer barbecues at Valleyview, DeBolt, Grovedale and Grande Cache, 
preferably in June.

PROCEDURE:

1. Council will set dates, times, venues and locations for annual ratepayer barbecues.

2. These annual barbecues will be advertised.

3. The current approved Audited Financial Statements will be available at the annual barbecues for 
ratepayers.

  (Original signed copy on file)                             
REEVE C.A.O.

POLICY TITLE: ANNUAL RATEPAYER BARBECUES Page 1 of 1

Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number: 11.05.292
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Policy No: 1039          Page 1

P 
O

 L
 I 

C 
Y

11. DEFINITIONSS 

Council

Greenview 

2.. POLICYY STATEMENTT 

3.. PROCEDUREE 

Title: Annual Ratepayer Barbecues

Policy No: 1039

Effective Date:  

Motion Number:  

Supersedes Policy No: CO 01

Review Date: (3 Years from date approved 
by Council)

Purpose:
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Ridgefest Sponsorship

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council approve a sponsorship in the amount of $5,000.00 to the Grande Cache Community 
Events Foundation for Ridgefest on the 2022 August long weekend, with funds to come from the 
Community Services Miscellaneous Grants Budget.
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Alternative #1:
 

Direct Costs:  $5,000.00 
Ongoing / Future Costs: N/A 

 

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

176



 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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Organization or
Person
Requesting Funds

Date of
Application

Form Date Field

Date of Event

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Mailing Address

Funding Request
Total

Type of
sponsorship
request

Describe your
organization

Intended Purpose

Direct Goals

178



Where/When?

Benefit to
residents of
Greenview

Funding from
others

Recognition

Previous Donation

Grant Funds
Received from
other sources?

Have you
performed any
other fundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Amount of Grant

List the donaee,
purpose and
amount

What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Signature

Date
179



Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email

Column41

MD Logo

Email Comm.

Column44

List for
Recognition

Contact Name(s)

Column47

Logo Permission

Agreement with
Statement

Signature1

FOIP Disclosure
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Ronald McDonald House Charities Alberta Sponsorship

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council approve an in-kind sponsorship of an auction item or prize valued up to $500.00 to 
Ronald McDonald House Alberta Charities for the Annual Shoot for the House event, September 10th, 2022 
at the Wapiti Shooters Club, Grande Prairie, AB, with funds to come from the 2022 Community Services 
Miscellaneous Grants Budget.

184



 

 

Alternative #1:

Direct Costs: $500.00 
Ongoing / Future Costs: N/A 

 

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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Organization or
Person
Requesting Funds

Date of
Application

Form Date Field

Date of Event

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Mailing Address

Funding Request
Total

Type of
sponsorship
request

Describe your
organization

Intended Purpose

Direct Goals

Where/When?

Benefit to
residents of
Greenview 186



Funding from
others

Recognition

Previous Donation

Grant Funds
Received from
other sources?

Have you
performed any
other fundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Amount of Grant

List the donaee,
purpose and
amount

What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Signature

Date

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email

Column41

MD Logo 187



Email Comm.

Column44

List for
Recognition

Contact Name(s)

Column47

Logo Permission

Agreement with
Statement

Signature1

FOIP Disclosure

188



RMHC ALBERTA SPONSORSHIP PACKAGE 2022189



RMHC ALBERTA SPONSORSHIP PACKAGE 2022

WHY SUPPORT RMHC ALBERTA?

IN 2020

190



RMHC ALBERTA SPONSORSHIP PACKAGE 2022

SPONSOR BENEFITS & BRAND ALIGNMENT 

By sponsoring an RMHC Alberta event, you will not only 
be aligning your brand with a well-known and respected 
global charity, you will also gain market exposure for 
your organization.

In Canada, RMHC brand visibility across this country is at 
an all-time high. In a recent survey, 90% of Canadians in 
Western Canada indicated they had a strong awareness 

charity in Canada. In the same survey, respondents 
indicated they also had a strong understanding of the 
RMHC mission, which has grown in an upward trend from 
38% in 2013 to 78% in 2019. Additionally, 1 in 4 Canadians 
have either stayed at, or know someone who has stayed  
at, a Ronald McDonald House. 

Source: 2019 Cause Marketing Report, Ipsos 

in 2022 is a unique opportunity for 

(YOUR BRAND) has the 
opportunity to invest in the 

families we serve.

Show the community
that (YOUR BRAND) is
socially responsible.

RMHC Alberta will highlight
(YOUR BRAND) in front of 

social media followers.

(YOUR BRAND) can demonstrate 
community engagement.

191



RMHC ALBERTA SPONSORSHIP PACKAGE 2022

EVENT DETAILS

SHOOT FOR
THE HOUSE
SEPTEMBER 10TH, 
WAPITI SHOOTERS CLUB

A sporting clay event which includes 96 targets, 
ammunition, breakfast, on course snacks, happy hour, 
dinner & auctions. We are hoping to have 400 registrants 
come to celebrate the 10th anniversary of this event.

ANNIVERSARY

10
Largest single one day, non-registered 

shoot in Canada.

 2.6 Million raised over the last nine years, 

help us reach 3 Million.

Special shout out to Wapiti Shooters Club 
and Flexbar Contracting who have been 
supporting this event since its inception.

th
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Presenting
Sponsor

Dinner
Sponsor     

Target & 
Ammo. 

Sponsor

Safety 
Sponsor Sponsor

Happy 
Hour 

Sponsor

10th 
Anniversary 

Sponsor

Station 
Sponsor

Prize 
Sponsor

Program 
Postcard

Investment $10,000 $7,500 $5,000  $3,500 $3,000 $2,500 $2,000 $1,500 $1,000 $500

Opportunities Available Multiple 2 Multiple 2 4 6 Unlimited 30 8 Multiple

Participant Spots 
Included

10 8 5 3 3 2 2 1

Logo on Table Tent Cards • • •

Signage Displayed at... Club House Club House
Club 

House
Safety Area

Volunteer 
Station

On Drink 
Tickets

Club House
Prize 
Area

Opportunity to Promote 
Company at Event

• • •

Special Mention on Social 
Media

• • • • •

Logo at Volunteer Station • •

Logo on Program 
Postcard

•

Speaking Opportunity • • •

Logo in Slideshow • • • • • • • • • •

Opportunity to include 
Company Swag in Player 
Bags

• • • • •

Option to Participate in 
Volunteer Experience or 
Prize Presentions

• •

Logo on e-signature 
promoting the event the 
month leading up to the 
event

•

Sponsorship Deadline: th 2022

BENEFITS TO SHOOT FOR THE HOUSE SPONSORSHIP
Join us for our 10th annual RMHC Alberta Shoot for the House event! This year’s Shoot will be held at the Wapiti Shooters 

Club on September 1 th, 2022. Consider sponsoring or registering your team and help us continue to raise awareness and 

funds in support of RMHC Alberta. The event includes breakfast, 96 targets, ammunition, on course lunch, happy hour, 
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RMHC ALBERTA SPONSORSHIP PACKAGE 2022

ADDITIONAL WAYS TO SUPPORT EVENTS

Sign up a team or 
purchase tickets

50/50 or auction item

Challenge someone
 within your industry

Fundraise

Donate an auction 
item or prizing

TIC
KET

Share with your networks 
and encourage them to 

get involved
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RMHC ALBERTA SPONSORSHIP PACKAGE 2022

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT

Please list the levels you are 
interested in sponsoring.

Please complete form and send to  at @ .

Company Name (print as you would like it to appear  
in sponsor recognition materials)

Address City Province Postal Code

Telephone Email

Contact Name

(Please make payable to Ronald McDonald House Charities® Alberta)

Please invoice me or the company at the address above

Visa/MC/AMEX

Sponsor Representative (Print Name) Sponsored Representative (Signature) 

Total Amount: $

Please call your RMHC Alberta representative to process credit card payments.
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Wapiti Recreation and Trail Management Plan initiative

Provincial N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy N/A

MOTION: That Greenview Council appoint Councillor _________________________ and Councillor 
______________ as the alternate to represent Greenview on the Wapiti Recreation and Trail Management 
Plan initiative.
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Alternative #1:

 
Alternative #2:  

Direct Costs:   

 

.  
 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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RMA Hospitality Suite – Fall Convention

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council direct administration to proceed with planning a hospitality suite at the RMA Fall 
Convention in November 2022, with a budget of $15,000.00 with funds to come from Councils Hospitality 
Budget.

201



 

Alternative #1:

 
 
Alternative #2:  

Direct Costs: 

Ongoing / Future Costs: 

 

.   

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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Western Canadian “FCM” Committee

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council rescind motion 21.04.196 “That Council direct Administration to research the 
concept of polling the rural and small urban municipalities in British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan and 
Manitoba to form an association as a federal voice similar to FCM.” 
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Alternative #1:

   
 

Direct Costs: 

.  
 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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Subdivision and Consolidation of portion of Lot 41 MR with Lot 40 to resolve 
driveway encroachments

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council direct Administration to proceed with the selling of lands due to encroachments on 
Lot 41MR, Block 46, PLAN 972 2205 with registration of a Utility Right-of-Way by agreement and caveat to 
address existing utility and sewer main lines located thereon.
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Alternative #1:

Direct Costs: 

 
Ongoing / Future Costs: 

 

 

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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N

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION
SKETCH
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N

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION
SKETCH
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Mawdsley Crescent, Stephenson Drive and Leonard Street – Appraisal and Sale of 
MD Owned Lots

Provincial

Council Bylaw/Policy

MOTION: That Council accept the assessed values set out on Schedule ‘B’ for Greenview lots available for 
sale located within Plans 102 6164 and 722 2953 in the Hamlet of Grande Cache for information, as 
presented. 

MOTION: That Council direct Administration to offer to sell the lots below at the median value of $2.11 per 
square foot as described in Schedule ‘B’, if purchased prior to March 15, 2023: 

Roll Number Plan, Block & Lot Roll Number Plan, Block & Lot
Mawdsley Cresc / Stephenson Dr

Leonard Street
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-
-
-
-
-
-
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Alternative #1:

Alternative #2:

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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215



N

RP

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
( GRANDE CACHE )

CONSOLIDATION

DESCRIPTIVE PLAN
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Road Construction Request

Provincial N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council approve the access application to build a portion of Township Road 704 west 
from Range Road 251. Encompassing approximately 800m of new construction to access SE 27-70-25
W5M with funds to come from the 2023 Block Funding Budget.  
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Alternative #1:  

Direct Costs:   

 
Ongoing / Future Costs: 

 

 INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW

Scenario 1 Scenario2

Scenario 1

Scenario 1.

Scenario 1
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Scenario 1

Scenario 1
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240



241
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Connector Road Request

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council refuse the connector road request application to connect Range Road 13 from
Township Road 741 to Township Road 735.
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Alternative #1:  

Direct Costs:  
Ongoing / Future Costs: 

 

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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Road Construction Request

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council deny the road access request submitted to access SE 33-73-1 W6 from Range Road 
13.

2.1. Greenview may construct Access Roads to give access to any cultivated lands, which have no accessible 
access through a developed/undeveloped Road Allowance(s) and/or any applicant owned adjoining lands

3.1. No access roads will be constructed where there is currently adequate access to the parcel whether 
through an existing roadway, a developed/undeveloped road allowance, or through the applicant’s 
immediately adjacent parcel.
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Alternative #1: 
 

Direct Costs:   

 
Ongoing / Future Costs: 

 

.  
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INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
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ROAD CONSTRUCTION REQUEST 
Any personal information that the Municipal District of Greenview may collect on this form is in compliance with Section 33 (c) of the Freedom 

of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. The information collected is required for the purpose of carrying out an operating program or 
activity of the Municipality, in particular for the purpose of our Public Works and Transportation Program.   If you have any questions about the 

collection, please contact the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Coordinator at 780-524-7600.
 

must be completed. 

 

Name:  Telephone No.  

Address:  

 

 

Please answer the following 

For Residential Access requests: 

For Farmland Access requests: 

ROAD RECONSTRUCTION 

PAVING REQUEST 

Location of Work to be Done 
Legal: 1/4 Sec  Twp  Rge  W of th M 
Lot  Block  Plan No.   Ward  

✔

✔

260



COMMENTS/ ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Note: The location sketch below must be completed for all request types.
Please indicate details such as low areas, muskegs, drainage ditches, bridges, culverts, pipelines, 

power lines, existing or proposed buildings, and current access.

RANGE W. OF MERIDIAN

TOWNSHIP

Date Signature of Applicant

Copies to: Manager, Operations Roads Supervisor East West
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Policy No: 4001 
 Page 1 

DEFINITIONS 

Permanent Residency 

POLICY 

Title:  SECURITY DEPOSITS FOR RESIDENTIAL ROAD CONSTRUCTION TO PROPOSED 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Policy No: 4001 
 
Effective Date:  May 9, 2017 
 
Motion Number: 17.05.176 
 
Supersedes Policy No: 
4001/4001-01 (Nov 26/13), 
EES 01  

 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Purpose:
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Policy No: 4001 
 Page 2 
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MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW
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270



271
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Road Construction Request

Provincial N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy 
Access Road

MOTION: That Council approve the access road application submitted to access SE 5-74-1 W6M from the 
south of Township Road 741, with funds to come from the 2023 roads block funding budget.

2.1. Greenview may construct Access Roads to give access to any cultivated lands, which have no 
accessible access through a developed/undeveloped Road Allowance(s) and/or any applicant owned 
adjoining lands

273



 

3.1. No access roads will be constructed where there is currently adequate access to the parcel whether 
through an existing roadway, a developed/undeveloped road allowance, or through the applicant’s 
immediately adjacent parcel.

 

Alternative #1:  

Direct Costs:   

274



 

Ongoing / Future Costs: 

 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

 

 

275



ROAD CONSTRUCTION REQUEST 
Any personal information that the Municipal District of Greenview may collect on this form is in compliance with Section 33 (c) of the Freedom 

of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. The information collected is required for the purpose of carrying out an operating program or 
activity of the Municipality, in particular for the purpose of our Public Works and Transportation Program.   If you have any questions about the 

collection, please contact the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Coordinator at 780-524-7600.
 

must be completed. 

 

Name:  Telephone No.  

Address:  

 

 

Please answer the following 

For Residential Access requests: 

For Farmland Access requests: 

ROAD RECONSTRUCTION 

PAVING REQUEST 

Location of Work to be Done 
Legal: 1/4 Sec  Twp  Rge  W of th M 
Lot  Block  Plan No.   Ward  

✔
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COMMENTS/ ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Note: The location sketch below must be completed for all request types.
Please indicate details such as low areas, muskegs, drainage ditches, bridges, culverts, pipelines, 

power lines, existing or proposed buildings, and current access.

RANGE W. OF MERIDIAN

TOWNSHIP

Date Signature of Applicant

Copies to: Manager, Operations Roads Supervisor East West
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Policy No: 4001 
 Page 1 

DEFINITIONS 

Permanent Residency 

POLICY 

Title:  SECURITY DEPOSITS FOR RESIDENTIAL ROAD CONSTRUCTION TO PROPOSED 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Policy No: 4001 
 
Effective Date:  May 9, 2017 
 
Motion Number: 17.05.176 
 
Supersedes Policy No: 
4001/4001-01 (Nov 26/13), 
EES 01  

 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Purpose:
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Policy No: 4001 
 Page 2 

 

279



280



281



282



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW

283
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SCADA Funding Commitments for the 2022 Budget Year

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council direct Administration to cancel WW22001 SCADA from the Approved 2022 Capital 
Budget, therefore releasing the committed funds of $100,000 back into the Wastewater Reserve. 

MOTION: That Council approve the additional commitment of $100,000 to WD22002 for a total 2022 
Capital Budget commitment of $200,000, funds to come from the Water Reserves for the purpose of new 
SCADA integration and control upgrades. 

“That Council passes the final 2022 Capital Budget as amended, showing Expenses 
of $61,880,515, to be funded from Reserves.”, 

WD17002
WD22002
WW22001
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WD22002 
WW22001 

 

 

Alternative #1:

Direct Costs:  
Ongoing / Future Costs:  
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Muskeg Seepee Cooperative Flooding - Update

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council accept the update on the flooding issues on the Muskeg Seepee Cooperative for 
information, as presented.

That Council direct Administration to contact AWN, Mountain Metis, and Muskeg Seepee Cooperative 
for the purpose of exploring a partnership to research flooding issues on and near the Muskeg Seepee 
Cooperative.  
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Grande Cache Ball Diamonds/RV Storage Area

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council accept the information on the Grande Cache Ball Diamonds and RV Storage area for 
information, as presented.
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GRANDE CACHE BALL DIAMONDS
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GRANDE CACHE
SPORT FIELDS MASTER PLAN
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GRANDE CACHE
SPORT FIELDS MASTER PLAN
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Grande Cache Operations Building design direction 

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy N/A

MOTION 1: That Council direct Administration to tender the Architecture and Engineering for a new 
Operations building in Grande Cache with approximately 27,750 square feet, with funding to come from 
the Capital Project FM22008.

MOTION 2: That Council direct Administration to place the new Operations building (Site A) in Grande 
Cache within the existing fenced location, which would require relocating the existing sand storage 
structure. 
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Alternative #1:
 
Alternative #2: 
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Direct Costs: 

Question #1 Building design review  
 

Anticipated Cost of Building Design #1 
 
 $     9,157,500.00  * 

 
Anticipated Cost of Building Design #2 
 
 $      6,441,600.00
 

 
Question #2 Building Location  

 
Ongoing / Future Costs: 

 

Prefered Location Alternate Location #1 Alternate Location #2
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Grande Cache Operations Shop

Preferred Building Location Layout 
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Grande Cache Operations Shop

Alternate Building Location Layouts- Alternate Location #1  
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Grande Cache Operations Shop

Alternate Building Location Layout - Alternate Location #2
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MD of Greenview - Grande Cache Operations Shop
Engineering Scope of Work and Cost Estimate
BASE Project #22GEBD5034

Task Details Rate Amount Fee

$12,400

$4,200
Geotechnical 
Engineering

$14,000
$30,600

$73,500

Tendering

$5,000
$134,200

June 02, 2022

Preliminary 
Design

 Sub Total

Design
 Development

Contractor Selection Stage Total

Sub Total

OPERATIONS SHOP                                                              
23,020 sq ft Shop Space; 9,360 sq ft Office Space                                                        

Approximate Value $6.3M - $7.5M

Construction 
Drawings & 

Specifications

Sub-Total

Sub-Total

Surveying

Sub-Total

Sub-Total
Preliminary Design Stage Total
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$71,760

$5,400

$30,550
$107,710
$272,510

Note 2:  All work wiil be invoiced as a percentage complete at the end of each month.

Post 
Construction

Sub-Total

Contract 
Administration 

(Based on 16 
months of 

construction)

Sub-Total

Note 1:  All costs stipulated are not inclusive of GST.

Project Completion Stage Total
Professional Fees Total

Sub-Total

Disbursements
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Vacant Lot Sales – Eaton Falls Crescent and Stephenson Drive

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council proceed with the sale of vacant lands in Grande Cache located at Eaton Falls 
Crescent and Stephenson Drive with the requirement that single detached dwellings be constructed on the 
lots within 5 years of purchase.

That Council direct Administration to sell the vacant lots owned by Greenview within Phase 6, Eaton 
Falls Crescent Grande Cache at the estimated fair market value as per Schedule ‘B’, with the stipulation 
that the purchaser needs to develop within 5 years.
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Alternative #1:

 
Alternative #2:

Direct Costs:
Ongoing / Future Costs:

 

320



 

.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

 

321



Policy 2018 Payroll

Provincial N/A

Council Bylaw/Policy N/A

MOTION: That Council approve the transfer of Policy 2018 “Payroll” from a Council policy to an 
administrative policy. 

MOTION: That Council repeal HR 04 “Payroll”.
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M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16
POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL

Section:

HUMAN
RESOURCES

POLICY NUMBER: HR 04 

PURPOSE:

To establish procedures to ensure employees are paid on a timely basis.

POLICY:

Administration will ensure proper accounting and legislative requirements are met for implementing a 
timely payroll. 

(Original signed copy on file)    
REEVE C.A.O.

POLICY TITLE: PAYROLL Page 1 of 1

Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number: 10.03.824
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POLICY NUMBER: HR 04 

PROCEDURE:

1.0 Each salary and wage employee must complete a time sheet, sign it, and submit it to their
supervisor every two weeks, per the pay schedule.

2.0 The time sheet is a valid, permanent statement and cannot be altered by anyone except the 
employee, with the approval of the supervisor, except to correct errors. When an error is
corrected, a copy shall be sent to the employee.

3.0 It is the supervisor's & Director’s responsibility to submit approved time sheets to the 
Payroll/Benefits clerk for record keeping. 

4.0 Employees shall be paid every two weeks, per the pay schedule.

5.0 Deductions and withholdings required by law, as well as the employee’s share of benefit 
premiums shall be deducted from each pay cheque, as they apply to salary and/or wage staff.

6.0 The employee's portion of premiums for benefits shall be deducted on the first pay period of 
each month. 

7.0 All employees classified as 'Wage Employees' shall be paid on an hourly basis.

8.0 Employees may receive a pay advance if special circumstances warrant and approved by the 
C.A.O.

9.0 Each payroll run shall be approved by the C.A.O. or Director of Corporate Services prior to
cheques being issued or electronically transferred.

C.A.O.

TITLE: PAYROLL PROCEDURES Page 1 of 1 
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Policy No: 2018           Page 1

P 
O

 L
 I 

C 
Y

11. DEFINITIONS

Bi-Weekly 

CAO 

Employee 

Greenview 

Title: Payroll

Policy No: 2018

Effective Date:  Date passed in Council

Motion Number:

Supersedes Policy No: HR-04

Review Date: (3 Years from date approved 
by Council)

Purpose:
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Policy No: 2018           Page 2

P 
O
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 I 

C 
Y Taxable Benefit 

22.. POLICYY STATEMENTT 

3.. PROCEDUREE 
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Policy No: 2018           Page 3
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C 
Y

44.. APPLICATIONN 

5.. ADMINISTRATIONN RESPONSIBILITIESS 
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Blossoming Garden of Hope Sponsorship

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy 

MOTION: That Council approve sponsorship in the amount of $5,000.00 to the Tiny Hands of Hope for the 
Blossoming Garden of Hope located in Grande Prairie, with funds to come from the Community Services 
Miscellaneous Grant Budget.

is to create a positive space for families, friends, school age children, nurses, first responders 
& all those affected by the loss of a child.  A place where they can celebrate, honour, & remember the little 
one they miss.  A garden that will bring life, hope, healing, comfort & a sense of community.” 
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Alternative #1:  

Direct Costs: $5,000.00 
Ongoing / Future Costs: N/A 
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Organization or
Person
Requesting Funds

Date of
Application

Form Date Field

Date of Event

Phone Number

Purpose of
Organization

Mailing Address

Funding Request
Total

Type of
sponsorship
request

Describe your
organization
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Intended Purpose

Direct Goals

Where/When?

Benefit to
residents of
Greenview

Funding from
others

Recognition

Previous Donation

Grant Funds
Received from 333



other sources?

Have you
performed any
other fundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Amount of Grant

List the donaee,
purpose and
amount

What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Signature

Date

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email

Column41

MD Logo

Email Comm.

Column44

List for
Recognition

Contact Name(s)

Column47

Logo Permission

Agreement with
Statement
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Signature1

FOIP Disclosure
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Blossoming Garden of Hope Donor Recognition

Donor Opportunities

“The Hole in the Sky” $35,000

About the Sculpture:
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“Family of Geese” $30,000

About the Sculpture:
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Blossoming Garden of Hope
Supporting families in the Peace Region
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Our Mission
To surround families that 
have lost a child from 
conception to adulthood with 
the beauty of nature, life and 
hope. A positive place where 
they can reflect, honour and 
feel a sense of community.  

58340



Our Vision
Our vision is to create a positive space for 

families, friends, school age children, 
nurses, first responders & all those 

affected by the loss of a child.  A place 
where they can celebrate, honour & 
remember the little one they miss.  
A garden that will bring life, hope, 

healing, comfort & a sense of community.
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Walk to Remember 2013 to present 
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Shrubs were given 
to families
1 per loss family

We received a small 
area to place our 
“Remembering our 

Babies” plaque 
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We realized that we were missing something in our 
community

62344



Why is the Garden needed?
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Children’s 
Memorial 
Garden

64346



We have fundraised  
approximately 388 K

- Gazebo $19, 635 
- Shrubs/Perennials - $17,293 
- Cement - $23,035.66 
- Sculptures - $82,000 
- Landscaping/Grading - $215,465

Garden cost is $409, 476
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“The Hole in the Sky”
By Grant Berg Gallery
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Your 
contribution to 
this project will 
help us complete 
the project this 

YEAR!
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“When you hear a child’s voice, laughing with glee
Just look in the sky and imagine it’s me.....” - Connie 

Thomason, 2001 

A garden to 
honour all of our 

children. 
In our hearts and 

in our arms.

68350
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Adjust Greenview’s EOI to follow the Alberta Roadbuilders and Heavy Construction 
Association Addendum 

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy N/A

MOTION: That Council direct Administration to adjust Greenview’s Expression of Interest to follow the 
Alberta Roadbuilders and Heavy Construction Association addendum to 2022 Rental Guide – Fuel Prices in 
Construction.

. 
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Feasibility report to Co-host Hospitality Suite at 2023 FCM 

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy N/A

MOTION: That Council direct Administration to provide a report on the feasibility of co-hosting a 
hospitality suite at the 2023 FCM Conference in Toronto 

. 

Alternative #1:
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Fee for Service Water Bottle Fill Station at Grande Cache Water Treatment Plant

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy N/A

MOTION: That Council direct Administration to provide a report for the establishment of a fee for service 
water bottle fill station to be located at the Grande Cache water treatment plant

. 
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Explore Options and Ways for Companies within the MD of Greenview to Pay Taxes

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy N/A

MOTION: That Council direct Administration to explore options and ways to compel companies within 
the MD of Greenview to pay their taxes.

. 
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Explore Potential Options for Additional Dressing Rooms at the Grande Cache 
Arena

Provincial 

Council Bylaw/Policy N/A

MOTION: That Council direct Administration to explore potential options for the addition of dressing 
rooms on the west side of the Grande Cache arena

. 

Alternative #1:
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Sally Ann Rosson 364
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DD.. Didow 371
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